933985

FILED

SEP 2 1 2015

COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION III STATE OF WASHINGTON

TO THE SUPREME COURT OF WASHINGTON

FROM

DIVISION III COURT OF APPEALS STATE OF WASHINGTON

No. 32418-4

Spokane County Superior Court Case No. 14-2-00761-7
The Honorable Michael Price
Superior Court Judge

Statement of Facts
List of Errors by Court
Law and Argument
Conclusion
Citations to Authority
Washington Appeals Courts Cases
Burmeister v. State Farm Ins. Co., 92 Wn.App. 359, 365, 966 P.2d 921 (1998) 9
Orion Corp v. State, 109 Wn.2d 621, 747 P,2d 1062 (1987)9
State v. Cain, 28 Wn.App 462, 624 P.2d 732 (1981)9
Washington Supreme Court Cases
Barr v. Day 124 Wn.2d 318, 879 P.2d 912 (1994)15
Burnet v. Spokane Ambulance, 131 Wn.2d 484, 494, 933 P.2d 1036 (1997)
Washington Statutes & Court Rules
<i>RCW</i> 7.90.005
RCW 7.90.040
RCW 7.90.040(5)
<i>RCW</i> 7.90.080
<i>RCW</i> 7.90.090
RCW 26.44.053
RCW 26.50.02014
CR 11

I. Facts

In 2013 a CHINS Petition was filed on behalf of BJC, the then 15 year old son of Marla Coyle, who helped him with this Petition and appeal. *RP 4 & 10*. In that CHINS case the Respondent Mr. Goins, a CPS counselor, was assigned by the Superior Court to assist BJC with the issues presented in that Petition. *RP 10*. Mr. Goins had been a counselor working for CPS for approximately 15 years. *RP 9*. He also had his own private practice with associates working for him. *RP 15*.

After being assigned to BJC's case Mr. Goins had him come to his private counseling center for more counseling. *RP 11, CP 1-7*. This conflict of interest was disclosed to the State DSHS CPS Ombudsman and Mr. Goins was disciplined for this self-referral. *RP 10*. This conflict was not the subject of this particular case but was germane to the concerns the Petitioner and his mother had about Mr. Goins seemingly overwhelming personal interest in BJC. The more important and relevant facts relate to allegations by BJC about Mr. Goins' sexual advances toward BJC. *RP 4, 7, 11, 15 & 23, CP 1-7*.

After being assigned to BJC's CHINS case, Mr. Goins made sexual advances toward BJC. RP 8 & 34; CP 1-7. According to BJC's Petition, Mr. Goins, did such things as caress his neck and face in a sexual manner, and showed up randomly at places he was known to go, such as a particular Starbucks he frequented and a doctor's office visit for BJC. RP 15-16 & 33, CP 1-7. However, of most importance, BJC alleged that after the CHINS Petition was dismissed, Mr. Goins followed him into the men's bathroom at the

courthouse, and while BJC was unzipping his pants, Mr. Goins lifted himself over the stall wall where BJC was, and ordered him to show him his genitals. *PR* 8-9, *CP* 1-7. BJC's Petition alleged the following:

"In August BJC [sic] was at the courthouse on 8/16/14 & Mr. Goins followed him into the restroom he popped his head over the stall & asked to see his penis"

In Summary, the Petition alleged the following "grooming" and/or sexual conduct by Mr. Goins, as follows: (See CP 1-7.)

- 1. Mr. Goins placed BJC in his own treatment center for therapy/counseling without state permission;
- 2. Mr. Goins was released from the services of CPS after placing BJC in his own clinic:
- 3. BJC expressed concern that Mr. Goins was gay and this made him uncomfortable;
- 4. After being released from CPS services and in particular on BJC's CHINS case, Mr. Goins showed up at a medical urological appointment for BJC without permission. BJC asked him to leave three times but he did not until the doctor entered the room:
- 5. BJC was at the Gonzaga Campus cafeteria getting coffee and Mr. Goins showed up to talk with BJC. At that time Mr. Goins asked BJC if he would be interested in getting "into things w/ another man", and claimed it would not be homosexual, it would just be experimenting. BJC said no he "liked girls";
- 6. On one occasion Mr. Goins was caressing BJC's face & the back of his head while meeting with him;
- 7. On another occasion Mr. Goins kissed BJC's forehead during a meeting;

- 8. BJC's mother called the police because of this touching and reported this unwanted and sexual conduct, giving the police report number in BJC's Petition;
- 9. BJC feared that Mr. Goins was going to "kill him" or "kidnap him" and was very specific about all the details of what Mr. Goins said and did to him, to his mother;
- 10. Ms. Coyle asked her son if he wanted a restraining order against Mr. Goins and he said he did. So she went to court with him to Superior Court, filed a Petition with him, and obtained an exparte order against Mr. Goins based on her son's allegations. CP 12-14
- 11. At the hearing in exparte. Ms. Coyle was assigned as BJC's GAL and service was arranged.

At the hearing on the CHINS Petition, and although clearly irrelevant to the sexual conduct and advances of Mr. Goins, the Respondent's counsel focused on BJC's mother and findings against her in a former dismissed CHINS. *RP* 26-29. Ms. Goins argued that this was irrelevant and that she was just served with these responses just before the hearing, and she wanted a continuance. Additionally, Mr. Goins argued that Ms. Coyle was also close to being ordered to not file anything in the CHINS case because she was so involved in the litigation. *RP* 43. Finally, he also indicated that BJC's mother was ordered to have a psychological evaluation completed in the CHINS case, and that this entire Petition was created because of her need to retaliate against Mr. Goins, as well as her propensity to litigate against other people. *RP* 39-45.

To be more specific about some of the procedural issues, Mr. Goins' counsel appeared in this case over the weekend before the March 18th hearing, and served Ms. Coyle with a 63 page declaration the Saturday before the Tuesday

hearing date. *CP 17-98*, *121-124 & RP 3*. Ms. Coyle brought BJC to the hearing to specifically testify about the details of Mr. Goins' actions, but the judge sent BJC out of the courtroom and refused to let him testify. *RP 1-5*. This seemed quite strange since even Mr. Goins counsel thought BJC would testify and the judge indicated that her petition failed because of a lack of evidence; evidence that Ms. Coyle felt her son could provide even more clearly than she could. *RP* 6.

At one point in the hearing the Judge went through the statute line by line and indicated that some of the factors did not "seem" to fit BJC's mother's allegations about Mr. Goins (*RP 7-8*), however, he continued to ignore the fact that BJC, the best source of this information, was available to go over the details of all of the incidents with the Respondent. *RP 8-14*. The judge basically treated Ms. Goins as an attorney, even though she was a lay GAL. *RP 1-60*. More particularly he redirected her several times back to the statutory criteria for this Petition, and many times she asked him to talk with her son to get his side of the story. *Id*. An example of this redirection was as follows:

THE COURT: Ma'am, I've got to stop you, ma'am because you're getting way off in left field. Because the issue -- maybe that's my fault because I asked the question.

MS. COYLE: That's okay.

THE COURT: The issue is whether there should be a sexual assault no contact order, so that's what I have to focus on today. (RP 11).

On another occasion Ms. Coyle went on to talk about Mr. Goins attempts to sexually groom her son and an attempted rebuttal to Mr. Goins attempts to paint her as the one creating this story, but the Judge again told her that such argument

was irrelevant and reminded her that this was about the factors in the statute. *RP* 11-14. In spite of the fact that the Judge often redirected her back to the factors at RCW 7.90 to pin point what Mr. Goins did, and would not let her explain the precursors of the Respondent's sexual grooming, he seemed to focus on Mr. Goins' counsels multitude of irrelevant distractions about Ms. Coyle and other people. *Id.* For example on one occasion he asked her whether she obeyed the dismissed CHINS orders requiring her to obtain a mental health evaluation, and what she did or did not do in that other case. See *RP* 9-39. Her response made sense to this author in that she made it clear that the entire CHINS case was dismissed, therefore, there was no longer any requirement for a psychological, and was completely irrelevant to whether her son was sexually approached by Mr. Goins. *Id.*

When Ms. Coyle tried to rebut the allegations by Mr. Goins' that she was somehow a bad faith litigant, she was always abruptly stopped and the Judge redirected her again and again. *Id.* She then became somewhat frustrated and asked why the court would not let her rebut Mr. Goins allegations if the court was not going to strike Mr. Goins irrelevant material as well. *See e.g. RP 15 line* 6-24. The judge denied her request to strike his irrelevant exhibits and information about the CHINS. *RP 15-16*; *See also RP 11-13, 50 & 57*.

When it came time for Mr. Goins counsel to argue the case, he was allowed to argue Ms. Coyle's reputation and past actions, intermingling that there were no allegations that fit the statute but never really dealing with some of the specific bathroom or touching episodes. RP 39 - 45. The substantially irrelevant

evidence about the CHINS case, the orders therein (that were moot after the dismissal), and evidence about Ms. Coyle's alleged history of filing for many other protection orders, was allowed into the hearing. *Id.* Not once did the judge redirect Mr. Goins counsel to stick to the statutory factors as he did with Ms. Coyle. *Id.*

Time and time again, Ms. Coyle invited the Judge to meet with BJC, to talk to him in chambers or on the stand, but the judge refused. See e.g. RP 64. Eventually the judge made his ruling on the Petition without ever talking to or allowing BJC to testify to more specifics. RP 65-71. He denied the Petition, found it was not brought in good faith, that her claim (not BJC's) was non-meritorious and that there were no facts that were close enough to form a basis for the Petition. RP 71-75. In addition to this the judge fined her for a frivolous case (RP 80) in the amount of \$1,200.00 and also found her to be a "vexatious litigant" and that the clerk should not accept any filings from her without a court order from himself for a period of 24 months from March 18, 2014, even though this really was not her Petition and she was appointed a GAL by the court. RP 71-81. All of those orders were appealed to Division III of the Court of Appeals. CP 104-120.

II. BASIS FOR REVIEW

The Appellant filed an appeal of the ruling denying her son's request for a Sexual Harassment order against the Respondent. This denial was based on different conclusions by Division III.

The Court of Appeals failed to allow the best evidence into the case via the teenage boy who experienced these things first hand, and instead focused on the mother's reputation rather than the allegations of what the Respondent did or did not do with BJC.

First, the Appeals Court indicated that the trial judge was correct in allowing facts about this child's mother's reputation for litigious activity and a dismissed CHINS Petition into the court's decisions. [Parenthetically the mother assisted her son in filing this petition and was assigned his guardian ad litem in the case as indicated earlier]. Put another way, the Court did not feel that that was error by the judge.

The Appeals Court also said it was appropriate for the trial court to exclude the subject child from court and testimony, and to substitute his mother's comments for his testimony since she was his "GAL". They said this even though they admitted that no evidence should ever be disallowed. Then, ironically indicated that even though the mother was the main complainant (from their point of view) presenting the evidence, evidence about her reputation and past was appropriate since it only specifically dealt with her credibility. This then led to the clearly contradictory decision that because the mother was not the actual "Petitioner" requesting the harassment orders, that it did not matter. However, they also implied in their ruling that she was the only source of information the trial judge used for BJC's Petition, and made no comment about the effect of these "reputation" pieces of evidence on her credibility. At no time did the Court of Appeals suggest anywhere in their decision that if her testimony was incredulous to the Judge why would he not turn to the actual source, BJC for clarification or corroboration with more detail.

The Court of Appeals felt there was no double standard used by the court when it allowed this clearly irrelevant and prejudicial information into the case, but would not allow Ms. Coyle to even make the slightest of statements about sexual grooming, and more detail about Mr. Goins past actions that led up to these sexual allegations. There is no doubt Mr. Goins presentation of this irrelevant information prejudiced the final decisions based on the issue of credibility alone, the very thing that RCW 7.90.080 intended to prevent. In fact, the trial court clearly tied the filing of this Petition for Sexual Harassment together with Ms. Coyle's reputation, distracting the issue of the case and the purposes of the statute. *Id*.

The Court of Appeals decision on the issue of the Respondent's prejudicial evidence, combined with the failure to allow the child's testimony was antithetical to the application and purposes of this statutory process in every way.

RCW 7.90.080 indicates that no irrelevant and prejudicial evidence shall come in unless there is an indication that the trial judge has dealt with its relevance by a ruling first. And, although it is true that this statute allows for impeachment evidence to come in, the Respondent in this case never once brought out any evidence to impeach this child, just his mother. In other words, the only thing the Respondent brought forth in this case was that the mother was a litigious person and that is really all they provided, besides some evidence from the dismissed CHINS case. This clearly put in question the application of this statute and how the evidence was gathered by the court and goes against the purpose and application of RCW 7.90.080 & .090 in particular since the end result was to deny this child his right to a provide a complete explanation for the

reason for the Petition. [It should be noted that BJC met his burden of proof at the initial temporary hearing pursuant to RCW 7.90.090(1)(a) in that this statute requires the child to prove that something happened that gave rise to the allegations and the need for a restraining order in the first place]

It is understood that a denial of a request to strike irrelevant evidence is within the trial court's discretion. See *Burnet v. Spokane Ambulance*, 131 Wn.2d 484, 494, 933 P.2d 1036 (1997); *Burmeister v. State Farm Ins. Co.*, 92 Wn.App. 359, 365, 966 P.2d 921 (1998). However, a trial court may abuse its discretion if it denies a motion to strike if it applies the wrong legal standard and considers evidence for a purpose for which the evidence is not admissible. See *Orion Corp. v. State*, 109 Wn.2d 621, 638, 747 P.2d 1062 (1987).

In this case, the Court of Appeals has inappropriately interpreted and misapplied these two statutes in particular, as well as the entire statute at RCW 7.90 et seq. The purpose behind the exclusion of evidence that is historic and about the victim is certainly important to exclude since that evidence, however, the statute also deals with "irrelevant evidence" relating to reputation as well. Again the Court of Appeals interpreted that as meaning "sexual activity of the victim" and that is all. However, "words in statutes are to be understood in their ordinary and popular sense." *State v. Cain*, 28 Wash.App. 462, 464, 624 P.2d 732 (1981).

The statute does not say what the Court of Appeals says that it says, ainxw ir specifically does not say that "reputation" is for "sexual reputation" information only. Reputation, according to Black's Law Dictionary 5th Edition (1979), is

"how we are seen by others". For example, if the victim is seen as a person who lies about injuries sustained by others in the community that would distract the trier of fact away from what actually happened. It is therefore inadmissible under the statute and should not be let in. The key here is to have information that deals with the issue of whether the sexual misconduct occurred or not.

Ironically, the judge seemed to try very hard to make this pro se litigant stick to the "statutory factors" and that is all, but allowed 50+ pages and argument about her reputation, which distracted the court from getting to the bottom of what really happened to BJC. It was as if the judge did not want to hear from BJC, given his mother's reputation, which underscores the entire purposes of RCW 7.90.080 & .090.

In this case, the Superior Court judge and the Court of Appeals also made it clear that Ms. Coyle was BJC's representative in the case and stood as his GAL, in his shoes to present his case to the trier of fact. There was also no question that she helped him with drafting the Petition. However, without the corroborating evidence from BJC, even in chambers, detailing what happened, the outcome of the case was a forgone conclusion. This conflict alone should move this case in the direction of an acceptance of review by this court since what the court did was in total conflict with the purposes of this statute.

This case involves a significant public policy issue that should be resolved by the Supreme Court.

The policy behind RCW 7.90.005 et seq is to protect children from sexual activity directed at them by another person, and they cannot obtain a DV order because of not only who is alleged to have perpetrated these actions, but because

they do not live with this particular Respondent. It clearly appeared that the trial judge and Appeals Court put the entire burden of proof on his mother to show injuries that rose to the level of the statutory criterion. However, the trial judge would not allow this teenage victim to testify even though the statute specifically indicates that actual physical injury does not have to be proven. See RCW 7.90.090. To top this the Judge allowed highly prejudicial evidence into court in an effort to seemingly impeach his mother for this filing when she was not the actual Petitioner.

The public policy behind this act is to insure that victims have a proper day in court. The Act even suggests that if the Respondents are represented by an attorney, and the victim is not represented that the court postpone the hearing until an attorney can be assigned to the victim child to counter the legal abilities of the Respondents attorney. RCW 7.90.040.

In this case, the trial judge and Appeals Court seemed to completely ignore the policies behind this statute and that is to protect the Petitioner from the effect of prejudicial irrelevant evidence at trial even though the evidence was about the victim's mother's reputation. This had little or no bearing on the truth of what happened and was allowed. Basically, the Appeals Court's ruling said that if you as a Respondent in these kind of cases, distract the court with evidence of the victim's family members, you will likely affect that witnesses credibility and the entire case.

There are no cases to date specifying how the term "reputation" evidence should be applied in this matter. However, section .080(2) specifically advises

the court to be careful about evidence that may be highly prejudicial to the victims claim/Petition. That statute reads in part, ". . . The court may not admit evidence under this section unless it determines at the hearing that the evidence is relevant and the probative value of the evidence outweighs the danger of unfair prejudice. . . ." It further suggests that it is the duty of the presenter of questionable evidence under this rule to first make an offer of proof, then the burden shifts to the court to determine if the evidence can meet this standard and how it should come in. None of this was done in this case. RP 1-60.

Again, the clear policy behind this overall statute is to give an alleged sexual assault victim a forum to air their facts of why they say they were sexually mistreated, not make your parents, or whoever happened to help you with the Petition the focal point of the hearing if doing so will absolutely distract the purpose of the proceeding.

As the legislature said in RCW 7.90.005 this statute is a remedy for the victim of sexual crimes that do not rise to the level of a crime. Id. It offers a simple remedy short of a DV trial or criminal charge that may be more complicated. The entire statute is intended to promote this goal, not allow the Respondent a forum for claims of CR11 sanctions against the child's parent. Nor is this statute to be just a smorgasbord of potential ways to handle these type of cases, where the court can pick and chooses to listen to the victim or not. This is especially true when that same judge allows prejudicial evidence in about the only one looking out for the child's welfare and protection, his Mom. Since the judge did not want to hear from the BJC, did not even let him in the court room,

and limited what Ms. Coyle could tell him about what was said, it totally circumvented this statute's purposes, which needs this Supreme Court's assistance.

Further, since the initial burden of proof is on the victim, the court needs to allow substantial latitude in how that presentation of evidence goes forth. The mother pled time and time again to let her teenage son testify, which seemed to be necessary given the private allegations. For example, it was important how the boy felt about the request to be intimate with another man, and exactly what was said; likewise, it is important to find out BJC's clear circumstances in the boy's room at court where the Respondent was alleged to order that he show him his private parte, and how that went down; or finally the kiss on the cheek by Mr. Goins, wherein happened, where they were standing in relationship to one another, what was said, what that made the boy feel, etc. The mother was not there for these incidents and yes she could have been as specific as she wanted, but she is not a trained GAL, has not gone through any state or county training for that job, and was not allowed to interview Mr. Goins, as any good GAL could have and should have done before the hearing.

The Court of Appeals decision in this case goes completely against the purposes and mandates of this statute and needs the Supreme Court's input to help others in the state, including judicial officers know what to do, who needs to testify, how this statute needs to be applied, etc.

The mother Ms. Coyle was not the real party in interest, or the Petitioner, and should not have been found to have filed this Petition wrongfully.

Marla Coyle the mother of the victim BJC was appointed by the court to act as his GAL. Certainly any parent would enjoy and be proud to help their child in any way they could, however, this occurred after the Petition was filed and so she could not know or think that she would be personally liable for filing this Petition "on behalf of" her son. She originally did what any parent would do and that is she tried to protect him from someone who was clearly making sexual advance toward this minor. She also was not technically the Petitioner and although she is allowed to file this action on BJC's behalf under the statute. In other words this case was for her son and not her.

Additionally, Ms. Coyle was ordered to be BJC's GAL. It is unclear which statute was used by the exparte commissioner to appoint BJC's mother as his GAL. This is vitally important, since RCW 26.44.053 indicates that a GAL shall be appointed in every case where there is abuse of a child and the case is brought via Chapter 26 or 13 RCW. However, RCW 7.90.040(5) states "Jurisdiction of the courts over proceedings under this chapter shall be the same as jurisdiction over domestic violence protection orders under RCW 26.50.020(5)." Therefore, this must be considered an RCW 26.44.053 or RCW 26.50.020 appointment. This is a specific appointment of a professional since the statute mentions that the Petitioner should not be made to "pay the fees" See RCW 7.90.040. Additionally since it references RCW 26.50.020 in this section, that section makes a clear distinction between a GAL and next friend.

It is common knowledge that a professional GAL can testify on behalf of a minor child. See RCW 26.44.053; 26.50.020; and Guardian Ad Litem rule #4

generally. Needless to say Ms. Coyle is not and has never been a professional

GAL. She should not have been put in the position to testify on behalf of her son

BJC. Neither was she an attorney, so she did not know what to do in the case,

the same as a "next friend" would not know. In actuality she was really a "next

friend" of the court.

When the court inquired about BJC's testimony, it should not have come in

via his mother. The rulings in this matter on both the trial court level and the

appeals court level conflict with all the rules and case law regarding the purpose

and duties of a GAL in such a case. This needs to be addressed by the Supreme

Court since it will have a chilling effect on parents who help their child file such

Petitions.

One such conflict deals with a GAL's immunity. If the GAL is acting as an

arm of the court, or someone to tell them what the juvenile has said, then they have

immunity. See Barr v, Day 124 Wn.2d 318, 879 P.2d 912 (1994). In this case Ms.

Coyle was helping the court with her son's case and so, there is some question

whether she was immune from a counter suit to make her a vexatious litigant. We

request that the Supreme Court accept this case to deal with this issue as well.

Respectfully submitted this 21st day of September 2015.

Gary R Stenzel, WSBA #16974

1304 W. College Ave LL

Spokane, WA 99201

Stenz2193@comcast.net

15

2

4

5

In Re:

and

Appellant/Petitioner,

NIMSHA ASIA GOINS,

Respondent/Respondent.

6 7

8

9

10

11

12 13

14

15

16

17

18

19 20

21

2223

24

25

Page 1

SEP 2 1 2015

COURT OF APPEALS
DIVISION III
STATE OF WASHINGTON
By......

COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION III, STATE OF WASHINGTON

Court of Appeals No. 32418-4

BJC,
Spokane County Superior Court

No: 14-2-00761-7

AMENDED DECLARATION OF MAILING

I, Lori Scarano, being first duly sworn upon oath deposes and says:

That she is now and all times hereinafter mentioned was a citizen of the United States and a resident of the State of Washington, over the age of eighteen years; that on the 21st day of September 2015, affiant enclosed in an envelope a copy of the following document: <u>Appellant's Petition for Review</u>, along with a copy of this Declaration of Mailing to:

Robert Cossey Attorney at Law 902 N. Monroe Street Spokane, WA 99223 9000

Said addresses being the last known addresses of the above-named individual, and on said date deposited the same so addressed with postage prepaid in the United States Post Office in the City of Spokane, State of Washington.

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington that the foregoing is true and correct.

ori Scarano

FILED
AUG. 20, 2015
In the Office of the Clerk of Court
WA State Court of Appeals, Division III

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION THREE

MARLO COYLE, on behalf of B.J.C.,)	
A 11)	No. 32418-4-III
Appellant,)	
v.)	
NIMSHA ASIA GOINS,)	UNPUBLISHED OPINION
Respondent.)	

FEARING, J. — We address the superior court's authority to enter sanctions against a vexatious litigator. Marlo Coyle sought a sexual assault protection order against a Department of Social and Health Service (DSHS) case worker who evaluated a child in need of services (CHINS) petition of Coyle's son. The trial court denied Coyle's request for a protection order and declared her a vexatious litigant. In addition to appealing this declaration, Marlo Coyle assigns error to the trial court's admission, as exhibits, of previous protection petitions filed by Coyle, the trial court's refusal to require her son to testify, and the trial court's construction of RCW 7.90.010(4)(d), the sexual assault protection act. We affirm the superior court.

FACTS

Appellant Marlo Coyle is the mother of B.J.C., sixteen years old in July 2013. By that month, B.J.C. had been the subject of four child dependency actions. During July 2013, B.J.C. fled home. He then filed a child in need of services (CHINS) petition, alleging neglect and abuse by his mother. B.J.C. claimed that his mother hit him, pulled his hair, and threatened to shoot him and others. According to B.J.C., his mother called him derogatory names and referred to him as "an ungratefull [sic] piece of shit like [his] dad." Clerk's Papers (CP) at 28. In response to the petition, Coyle denied striking B.J.C., except "smacking" him once to gain his attention. Upon the granting of a CHINS petition, the DSHS may place a child in a crisis residential center, foster family home, licensed group home facility, or any other suitable residence.

DSHS Division of Children and Family Services (DCFS) assigned social worker and respondent, Nimsha Asia Goins (Asia Goins) to assist with B.J.C.'s CHINS petition. As was standard practice, Goins completed a family assessment, helped B.J.C. find a placement home, and referred B.J.C. for mental health counseling. Goins recommended to the trial court that B.J.C.'s petition be granted and the trial court concurred.

At the time B.J.C. entered a placement home, he saw a therapist at Spokane

Mental Health, but B.J.C. told Goins he wanted a new therapist. Goins referred B.J.C. to

Lutheran Social Services and Spokane Therapist. B.J.C. decided to see Jeff Wirth at

Spokane Therapist. Goins had recently begun his own private counseling practice with

Spokane Therapist, but he insists he did not benefit financially from referring B.J.C. to Spokane Therapist.

After B.J.C. filed his CHINS petition, his mother, Marlo Coyle, filed an At-Risk-Youth (ARY) petition alleging that B.J.C. abused drugs and alcohol, exhibited anger problems, and engaged in assaultive and aggressive behavior. In the petition, Coyle alleged that B.J.C. assaulted her, her husband, and B.J.C.'s brother. Granting of an ARY petition by the juvenile court allows the parent to obtain assistance and support from the court in maintaining the care, custody and control of the child and to assist in the resolution of family conflict. We do not know if a court granted Marlo Coyle's ARY petition. B.J.C.'s CHINS placement lasted about seven months.

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