I. ARGUMENT 

Ms. Coyle does not specifically cite any authority to support her request for review by 

this Court; however, her reference to public policy on page 10 of her brief appears to be a 

gesture toward RAP 13 .4(b )( 4 ), which states that a petition for review will be accepted by 

the Supreme Court only "[i]f the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest 

that should be determined by the Supreme Court." Review of a decision of the Court of 

Appeals is rarely accepted on this basis unless it has "sweeping implications" that affect 

members of the public beyond the litigants involved in the case. See, e.g., State v.

issue of significant public policy. 

To that end, Ms. Coyle argues on pgs. 10-11 of her Petition for Review that: 

"[t]he policy behind RCW 7.90.005 et seq is to protect children from 
sexual activity directed at them by another person, and they cannot obtain 
a DV order because of not only who is alleged to have perpetrated these 
actions, but because they do not live with this particular Respondent." 
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Ms. Coyle further argues that "[t]he public policy behind this act is to insure [sic] that 

victims have a proper day in court" and "the clear policy behind this overall statute is to 

give an alleged sexual assault victim a forum to air their facts of why they say they were 

sexually mistreated, not make your parents, or whoever happened to help you with the 

Petition the focal point of the hearing if doing so will absolutely distract the purpose of 

the proceeding." (Petition for Review, pgs. 11 & 12.) Ms. Coyle does not provide any 

authority for her assertions about the nature of the underlying purpose of this statute, 

however, and her comments on that subject should be disregarded by this Court; this 

Court need not address issues that a party neither raises appropriately nor discusses 

meaningfully with citation to authority. Saviano v. Westport Amusements, Inc., 144 

Wn.App. 72, 84, 180 P.3d 874 (2008); citing RAP 10.3(a)(6); State v. Mills. 80 Wn.App. 

231, 234, 907 P.2d 316 (1995); see also State v. Logan, 102 Wn.App. 907, 911, n.l, 10 

P.3d 504, ("Where no authorities are cited in support of a proposition, the court is not 

required to search out authorities, but may assume that counsel, after diligent search, has 

found none.")(quoting DeHeer v. Seattle Post-Intelligencer, 60 Wn.2d 122, 126, 372 P.2d 

193 (1962)). 

Not only does Ms. Coyle fail to provide sufficient information about the underlying 

purpose of the statute, she fails to clearly argue why she believes her petition involves an 

issue of substantial public interest pursuant to RAP 13.4(b). She appears to argue that 

because RCW 7. 90 addresses issues of substantial public interest and her petition 

references RCW 7 .90, her petition, therefore, must necessarily involve an Issue of 

substantial public interest; however, as previously noted, decisions of the Court of 

Appeals are generally only accepted for review by the Supreme Court on the basis of 
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substantial public interest when they have "sweeping implications" that affect the public 

beyond the litigants involved in the case. See, e.g., State v. Watson, 155 Wn.2d 574, 122 

P.3d 903 (2005). Ms. Coyle makes no clear argument that the issues raised in her 

petition (as opposed to those addressed in the governing statute) address any significant 

issue of public interest that requires review by this Court. 

In this case, the Court of Appeals found that the trial court appointed Ms. Coyle to act 

as B.J.C.'s guardian ad litem, as authorized by RCW 7.90.040(4). (Unpublished Opinion, 

pg. 15.) In doing so, it noted that the law itself neither compels nor prevents a guardian 

ad litem from calling the minor she represents to testify; whether the trial court permits 

such testimony is therefore a matter of discretion pursuant to RCW 2.28.01 0. 

(Unpublished Opinion, pg. 15.) Ms. Coyle does not address or reference RCW 2.28.010 

in her brief. 

Further, as the Court of Appeals observed in its opinion, Ms. Coyle only ever argued 

that B.J.C. would confirm the allegations she made on his behalf if he were allowed to 

testify; she did not state that he would testify to additional allegations or further details 

beyond the allegations made in the petition. (Unpublished Opinion, pgs. 15-16.) This 

fact is important because it demonstrates two fatal flaws in Ms. Coyle's argument: (1) no 

prejudice results from excluding B.J.C.'s testimony, and (2) where the allegations did not 

support the petition even if they were assumed to be true, credibility is irrelevant and 

allowing B.J.C. to testify is not in the best interests of the child. 

It is apparent that Ms. Coyle believes that the underlying case turns on an evidentiary 

issue regarding the evaluation of evidence. She appears to argue that the matter was 

determined pursuant to the Court's perception of her credibility rather than the child's 

Respondent's Answer to Petition for Review - Page 5 of 8 ROBERT COSSEY & ASSOCIATES 
902 N. Monroe 

Spokane, W A 99201 
(509) 327-5563 



credibility, which she believed should have been considered. This, however, is not 

accurate because the trial court held that Ms. Coyle's allegations, even when presumed to 

be true, fell short of the sexual touching required by statute. (Unpublished Opinion, pg. 

13.) Her petition was denied because the allegations were insufficient as a matter of law, 

regardless of their truth. (RP 71-72; Unpublished Opinion, pg. 8.) Credibility was 

therefore not a factor in the trial court's dismissal of the petition, and Ms. Coyle's 

evidentiary arguments are without merit. 

b. Pursuant to RAP 13.4(b), there is no basis to review the Court of Appeals' 
decision to affirm the trial court's consideration of Ms. Coyle's reputation as a 
vexatious litigant and its subsequent determination that she was, in fact, a 
vexatious litigant. 

Ms. Coyle appears to argue that the trial court considered information that was 

prejudicial to her when it addressed Mr. Goins' requests for relief, and she assigns error 

to the Court of Appeals' failure to "comment about the effect of these 'reputation' pieces 

of evidence on her credibility." (Petition for Review, pg. 7.) She argues: "This needs to 

be addressed by the Supreme Court since it will have a chilling effect on parents who 

help their child file such Petitions." (Petition for Review, pg. 15.) 

As discussed above, however, the trial court made no evaluation of witness credibility 

in its decision to dismiss the petition; therefore, her arguments are without merit. In 

addition to the fact that the Court of Appeals' unpublished ruling has no precedential 

value to bind courts with respect to future decisions, it is certainly not at all common that 

the Court is asked to consider information that a party in any proceeding had already 

been known to have filed twenty-one (21) obviously retaliatory petitions for sexual 
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assault protection prior to the one at issue - certainly not common enough to rise to the 

level of an issue of significant public interest. 

Finally, it is apparent from the record that the Court did not consider the twenty-one 

(21) petitions in its discussion ofthe merits of Ms. Coyle's petition; rather, it referenced 

that information in its review of Mr. Goins' request that Ms. Coyle be determined a 

vexatious litigant and that she be sanctioned which was an issue addressed after Ms. 

Coyle's petition as already found to be without merit. 

II. CONCLUSION 

Ms. Coyle makes no meaningful argument or reference to authority in her Petition for 

Review with respect to the factors contained in RAP 13 .4(b) governing the acceptance of 

review by this Court; therefore, her petition should be denied. Further, while it is not 

necessary for this Court to consider the merits of her arguments regarding the underlying 

case pursuant to a Petition for Review, it is immediately apparent that those arguments 

are also without merit.